PRESENT:

Trustees: Chair Randy Campbell, Vice-Chair Robertson, Greg Agar, Janet Barnes, Jane

Bryce, Ruth Ann Dodman, Dave Douglas, Jack Fletcher, Malinda Little, Scott

McKinlay, and Lareina Rising

Student Trustees: Alizah Ali, Tristan Nemcek, joining electronically, and Kobee Soney

Staff: Director of Education John Howitt, Associate Director Brian McKay,

> Superintendents of Education, Angie Barrese, Gary Girardi, Ben Hazzard, Helen Lane, and Mary Mancini, and Public Relations Officer Heather Hughes

Regrets:

Recording Secretary: Jaime Shannon, Executive Assistant to the Director

Call to Order: Chair Campbell called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.

#2022-134

Moved by Jack Fletcher, seconded by Greg Agar,

Approval of the Agenda

"That the Agenda for the Regular Board Meeting of November 8, 2022 be

approved."

CARRIED.

In Memoriam Chair Campbell read an In Memoriam for an LKDSB secondary student. A

moment of silence was observed.

Chair Campbell read the Traditional Territorial Acknowledgement and provided

an overview of McKee Purchase (Treaty 2) in recognition of Treaties

Recognition Week, November 6-12. He also recognized that it was Indigenous

Veterans Day.

Declaration of Conflict of

Interest

None.

#2022-135

Approval of the Minutes

Oct/11/2022

Moved by Janet Barnes, seconded by Greg Agar,

"That the Board approve the Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting of October

11, 2022."

CARRIED.

#2022-136

Approval of the Minutes

Oct/31/2022

Moved by Malinda Little, seconded by Ruth Ann Dodman,

"That the Board approve the Minutes of the Special Board Meeting of October

31, 2022."

CARRIED.

**Business Arising** 

None.

Motions Emanating from the Regular Board Private

Session

None.

#2022-137 Moved by Derek Robertson, seconded by Scott McKinlay,

"That the Action of the Board in Private Session be the Action of the Board."

Action of the Regular Board Private Session be the Action of the Board

CARRIED.

Presentation to Outgoing Trustees

On behalf of the Board, Chair Campbell thanked Trustees Dave Douglas, Scott McKinlay, and Derek Robertson, and First Nations Trustee Lareina Rising for their service to the LKDSB and noted their contributions.

Presentation – 2021/2022 School Year Audited Financial Statements Associate Director McKay introduced Kevin Sabourin, partner with the firm of Bailey Kearney Ferguson LLP, which was appointed by the Board to perform the 2021-2022 school year annual audit of its financial statements.

Kevin Sabourin explained the Auditor is engaged by the Board to conduct an audit to ensure the financial statements are prepared and reported within the Public Sector Accounting Standards (PSAB) for School Boards. The LKDSB Management Team is responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements and the report is in draft form until approved by the LKDSB Board of Trustees. He referred Trustees to the Independent Auditors' Report and reported that based on the evidence gathered, the financial statements fairly represent the financial position of the Board as of August 31, 2022. He advised that it is a clean opinion, which means the auditor did not have any reservations, which is the highest standard you can achieve. He presented the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as of August 31, 2022 and the Statement of Operations, which show the Board is compliant by Ministry Definitions.

A Trustee asked a question regarding the increase in surplus amount compared to the budgeted surplus amount. Kevin Sabourin responded that the revenues were increased due to additional Ministry funding for COVID-19 supplies.

Associate Director McKay reported on the Detailed Accumulated Surplus Sheet explained that surplus is created when there is more revenue than budgeted, or less expenses than budgeted. He reported that there was an annual surplus of \$8.1M and noted that the liability for the retirement gratuities will continue to decrease each year until it is reduced to \$0. He highlighted that there were \$1.3M in proceeds from land sales, and that the supply budget was underspent by \$2.5M due to COVID-19.

Director's Snapshots of Excellence

Director Howitt presented the Snapshots of Excellence for September and October 2022 and noted the presentation is not inclusive of all the events happening in LKDSB schools. He congratulated Melissa Dent, teacher at Rosedale Public School, who was named a recipient of the 2022 Prime Minister's Certificate of Achievement in STEM. Photos were presented of 'Meet the Families' events at schools across the district, Grade 7/8 student math activities with Instructional Math Coaches, and activities across the district in recognition of National Day for Truth and Reconciliation on September 30, including a presentation at Wallaceburg District Secondary School by Geronimo Henry, a residential school survivor of the Mohawk Institute Residential School in Brantford, Ontario. Photos were presented of student-created "Fun Facts about French" books that were handed out within the Merlin community, Forest area schools accepting donations of school supplies from a Kiwanis Club of Forest fundraiser, secondary school library displays, and

Thamesville Area Central School students learning to harvest sunflowers and using the flower stems to practice measuring. Photos were also shared of "Adelies Full Bellies", a summer project started by a Grade 5 student from Errol Road Public School to raise funds for school groceries. He noted that she delivered over \$6,000 worth of healthy food and gift cards to six schools in Sarnia.

Director Howitt presented photos of a 'Book Tasting' for Grade 5/6 Tilbury Area Public School students, LKDSB staff engaging in different learning opportunities during the first Professional Activity day of the school year, Grade 2 Sir John Moore Community School students participating in STEAM activities with Corunna library staff, events to welcome the 100 LKDSB International Education Program students, from 23 countries, into LKDSB schools and communities, Alexander Mackenzie Secondary School staff and students tending to their gardens and harvesting honey from beehives, Sarnia Legionnaires Junior Hockey team members visiting with P.E. McGibbon Public School students, Hanna Memorial Public School students learning about the Bluewater Health helipad during a safety assembly, student activities for National School Bus Safety Week and Bus Driver Appreciation Day, Grades 4 to 6 Hillcrest Public School students participating in the Yellow Fish Road Program in partnership with the St. Clair Region Conservation Authority, Director Howitt visiting with two Kindergarten classes at P.E. McGibbon Public School as a guest reader, and the "Share a Cup of Kindness" display at Merlin Area Public School.

**Delegations** 

None.

Questions from the Public

None.

2022-138 2021/2022 School Year Audited Financial Statements Report B-22-108 Associate Director McKay referred Trustees to the report that was presented earlier in the Board Meeting.

Moved by Derek Robertson, seconded by Scott McKinlay,

"That the Lambton Kent District School Board approve the annual audited Consolidated Financial Statements and the accompanying Independent Auditors' Report for the year ending August 31, 2022."

CARRIED.

Moved by Derek Robertson, seconded by Jane Bryce,

"That the Lambton Kent District School Board approve the accumulated surplus allocation amounts from the August 31, 2022 year end, as presented in the Accumulated Surplus attachment."

CARRIED.

2022-139 2022/2023 Internal Audit Plan Report B-22-109 Vice Chair Robertson reported that the Audit Committee met on November 1, 2022 and the audit recommended for the 2022-2023 school year is Student Enrolment.

Moved by Derek Robertson, seconded by Ruth Ann Dodman,

"That the Lambton Kent District School Board approve the 2022/23 Internal Audit Plan."

It was noted that a discussion took place during the Audit Committee meeting on whether the outgoing committee should designate the audit for the incoming committee, and it was decided that it could be helpful.

CARRIED.

Parent Involvement Committee Report Report B-22-110 Director Howitt reported that the Parent Involvement Committee (PIC) met on October 24, 2022. He noted that the meeting was held virtually but the committee was considering moving to in-person meetings with an option for virtual attendance and referred Trustees to the report for further details on the meeting.

Audit Committee Report Report B-22-111

Vice-Chair Robertson reported that the Audit Committee met on November 1, 2022, and the committee approved the recommendations brought forth to the Board that evening regarding the 2021-2022 Consolidated Financial Statements and the 2022-2023 Internal Audit Plan.

Indigenous Liaison Committee Report Report B-22-112 Trustee Rising reported that the Indigenous Liaison Committee (ILC) met on October 19 2022, and noted that the meeting was held virtually but the committee is reviewing the format for future meetings. She reported that it was the first ILC meeting for Kettle and Stony Point First Nation Education Director David Ennis, and Aamjiwnaang First Nation announced the retirement of long-term Indigenous educator Janet Steadman. She further reported that information was shared on the Indigenous Teacher Education Program (ITEP) with Queen's University, which has 18 students enrolled who will receive their OCT qualifications when they graduate. She noted they are recruiting for another cohort of students.

Special Education Advisory Committee Report Report B-22-113 Trustee Barnes reported that the Special Education Advisory Committee (SEAC) met on October 20, 2022 and she highlighted that an exceptional presentation by Michael and Marcel Jacques was received and the Priority-Setting Exercise results for future meetings were reviewed.

Student Senate Report B-22-114 Student Trustee Ali reported that the first Student Senate meeting of the 2022-2023 school year occurred on October 20, 2022 and the purpose of Student Senate was reviewed, two Co-Chairs and a Recorder were elected, and the Mental Health Project was discussed.

Student Trustee Soney reported that during the meeting, Director Howitt informed Student Senators that there will be a standing Equity, Inclusion, and Diversity agenda item due to a recent Board motion, and Student Senators decided they would like to meet in-person for future meetings.

Ontario Public School Boards' Association Update (OPSBA) Trustee Fletcher reported that the OPSBA Representative and Alternate would be determined at the November 15, 2022 Organization Meeting of the Board. He noted that the OPSBA Board of Directors will visit the Ontario Legislature on November 27, 2022.

Electronic Meetings Report B-22-115 Chair Campbell reported that on October 31, 2022, the Ministry of Education provided notification to school boards that the amendments to Ontario Regulation 463/97, which are noted in the report, will be waived effective November 15, 2022, reinstating pre-pandemic practices. He reminded Trustees that their attendance at meetings is governed by O. Reg. 463/97, LKDSB

Chair of the Board

	Regulations on Electronic Meetings (R-AD-144) and LKDSB Procedural By- Laws (Section 10.3), including electronic attendance at Board Meetings.
Correspondence	None.
New Business	None.
Trustee Questions	In response to whether the Board has considered reviewing the use of the Twitter application due to the recent change in direction for the application, Director Howitt noted that Senior Administration is observing the situation and if the application becomes inconsistent with the Board's Strategic Priorities its use will be reviewed.
	Student Trustee Soney asked how the payment process for Indigenous Knowledge Keepers could be improved after noting they have been less inclined to provide learning to students due to the lengthy process. Director Howitt noted this has been a significant concern and reported there is a new payment process, developed in cooperation with the Indigenous Lead and the Business Department, that he hoped would improve the experience for Knowledge Keepers so they would be willing to work with the LKDSB again and provide learning to the students.
Notices of Motion	None.
Announcements	The Organization Meeting of the Board will be held on Tuesday, November 15, 2022 at the Sarnia Education Centre at 7:00 p.m.
	The next Regular Board Meeting will be held on Tuesday, November 22, 2022 at the Sarnia Education Centre at 7:00 p.m.
Adjournment	There being no further business of the Board, Chair Campbell declared the Meeting adjourned at 8:21 p.m.

Director of Education and Secretary of the Board